
 

 

 

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

 

AUGUST 22, 2022                        6:00 p.m. 
Government Office Building, Room 301, Salisbury, Maryland and Zoom Video Conferencing 

 
   Times shown for agenda items are estimates only. 

 
 

6:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER 
  
6:01 p.m. WELCOME/ANNOUNCEMENTS/PLEDGE  
  
6:02 p.m. CITY INVOCATION- J. Anthony Dickerson, Greater Mt. Olive FGBC 
  
6:04 p.m. ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
  
6:05 p.m. CONSENT AGENDA- City Clerk Kimberly Nichols 
 • Resolution No. 3181– to re-appoint Marina Feeser to the Sustainability Advisory  

Committee with term ending August 2025 
• Resolution No. 3182 – declaring Granger & Magee PA eligible to receive Enterprise 

Zone benefits for property located at 145 East Carroll Street, Salisbury, MD 
• Approving the Manufacturing Exemption requests for Viskon (for years 2019 and 

2020) 
• August 1, 2022 Work Session Minutes 

 • August 1, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes 
  
6:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
6:15 p.m. 

RESOLUTION- City Administrator Julia Glanz 
• Resolution No. 3183– to wind down LOSAP for volunteer members of the Salisbury  

Fire Department and adopt a Volunteer Member Incentive Policy 
 
ORDINANCE- City Attorney Ashley Bosche 

 • Ordinance No. 2734- 1st reading- to permit townhouse developments in General 
Commercial districts 

  
6:20 p.m. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
6:25 p.m. ADMINISTRATION and COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  
6:30 p.m. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



Copies of the agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk’s Office, Room 
305 – City/County Government Office Building, 410-548-3140 or on the City’s 
website www.salisbury.md. City Council Meetings are conducted in Open Session 
unless otherwise indicated.  All or part of the Council’s meetings can be held in  
Closed Session under the authority    of the Maryland Open Meetings Law,              
Annotated  Code of Maryland General Provisions Article § 3-305(b) by vote of the             
City Council.                                                                  

                                                                                                                            

 
NEXT COUNCIL MEETING – September 12, 2022 

 
• Invocation- Reverend John Wright- Unitarian Universalist Fellowship 
• Proclamation- National Sickle Cell Disease Awareness Month 
• Ordinance No._- 2nd reading- to permit townhouse developments in general commercial districts  
• Public Hearing- Charter Amendment Resolution 2022-4- to provide for collective bargaining for 

certain employees of the City of Salisbury 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Join Zoom Meeting  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88186172560 
Meeting ID: 881 8617 2560 

Phone: 1.301.715.8592 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Posted 8/18/2022 

http://www.salisbury.md/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88186172560




1 
2 

RESOLUTION NO. 3181

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is re-appointed to the Sustainability Advisory Committee (Green Team) for the 4 
term ending as indicated. 5 

6 
Name  Term Ending 7 
Marina R. Feeser August 2025 8 

9 
10 
11 

THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on August 22, 2022. 13 

14 
ATTEST: 15 

16 
17 

_____________________________ _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK  PRESIDENT, City Council 20 

21 
22 

APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
24 

__________ day of ______, 2022 25 
26 
27 

_____________________________ 28 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 



 
RINTER  

MEMO 
 
 
 
 
 

OFFICE 
 
  
To: City Council 

From: Laura Soper 

Subject: Enterprise Zone Eligibility – Granger & Magee PA 

Date: August 17, 2022 
 
Attached is a copy of the application requesting Enterprise Zone designation 
for Granger & Magee PA that I received from Mark Granger.  I have reviewed 
this application and, to the best of my knowledge, this establishment meets 
all of the qualifications to be so designated.  This property is located within 
the boundaries of the City’s Enterprise Zone, and this company has invested 
more than $50,000 in the property and/or has hired (or will hire) two or more 
NEW full time employees since locating in the Enterprise Zone.   
 
I recommend that the City Council adopt the attached resolution designating 
Granger & Magee PA located at 145 East Carroll Street, eligible to receive the 
benefits of the Enterprise Zone. 
 
As a reminder, companies that are declared eligible for enterprise zone 
benefits are able to receive either a one time Income Tax Credit of $1,000 per 
new employee hired or a 10 year Property Tax Credit.  The purpose of this 
program is to encourage industries to locate in areas identified as enterprise 
zones and to reinvest in such properties. 
 
 
Attachments:  Enterprise Zone application from Granger & Magee PA 
 
   
 



 RESOLUTION NO. 3182 1 
 2 
 3 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND DECLARING 4 
Granger & Magee PA ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE ENTERPRISE ZONE BENEFITS 5 
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 145 East Carroll Street, SALISBURY, MD. 6 

 7 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury, Maryland and Wicomico County created an Enterprise Zone on 8 

June 6, 1983 for the purpose of encouraging economic development of the area encompassed within the 9 
boundaries of such zone; and 10 
 11 

WHEREAS, the Enterprise Zone was created under authority granted by the State of Maryland; 12 
and 13 
 14 

WHEREAS, the Maryland Code permits certain benefits to be extended to businesses that locate 15 
or expand in the Enterprise Zone provided that they meet certain standards; and 16 
 17 

WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury and Wicomico County have also established certain standards, 18 
which must be met in order for a business to be deemed eligible to receive Enterprise Zone benefits; and  19 
 20 

WHEREAS, Granger & Magee PA meets the standards set forth in the Maryland Code and in local 21 
regulations to be eligible to receive Enterprise Zone benefits; and  22 
 23 

WHEREAS, Granger & Magee PA has requested that the company be designated as eligible for 24 
Enterprise Zone benefits because of its investment of more than $50,000 in the property located in the 25 
Enterprise Zone at 145 East Carroll Street Salisbury, MD and/or for hiring two or more new full-time 26 
employees.  27 
 28 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 29 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 30 
 Section 1. Granger & Magee PA shall be designated as eligible to receive the benefits of the 31 
Enterprise Zone effective upon the adoption of this Resolution. 32 
 Section 2.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision 33 
of this Resolution shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 34 
 Section 3.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any 35 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be adjudged invalid, 36 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication 37 
shall apply only to the section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other 38 
provisions of this Resolution shall remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 39 
 Section 4.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as 40 
if such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 4. 41 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and read and passed at the regular meeting of the 42 
Council of the City of Salisbury held on this 22nd day of August, 2022 and is to become effective 43 
immediately upon adoption. 44 
 45 
ATTEST: 46 
 47 
 48 
_____________________________   __________________________________ 49 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, City Council President 50 
 51 
 52 



Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
_____________________________ 5 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor6 
 7 





From: Laura Soper
To: Kay Lundy; Richard Baldwin; Olga Butar; Beverly Tull
Subject: Magee PA application.pdf
Date: Tuesday, August 2, 2022 4:13:00 PM
Attachments: Magee PA application.pdf

Good afternoon,
Attached is an Enterprise Zone application I received from Granger & Magee PA for their location at
145 E Carroll Ave. Please review and let me know if they are in good standing with your department.
Best,
Laura

mailto:lsoper@salisbury.md
mailto:klundy@salisbury.md
mailto:RBaldwin@salisbury.md
mailto:obutar@salisbury.md
mailto:btull@salisbury.md



8/2/22, 3:10 PM Entries ‹ City of Salisbury MD — WordPress


https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries&view=entry&id=20&lid=153907&order=ASC&filter&paged=1&pos=0&field_id&operator 1/4


We don’t run promotions very often, but for a limited time we’re offering 60% Off our Pro version to all users of
our free Instagram Feed.


Get this offer  I'm not interested


Exclusive offer - 60% off!


entry 1 of 3   


Enterprise Zone : Entry # 153907    show empty fields


The Process


Applying For:


Both


Today's Date


07/20/2022


Section A - Applicant Information


Name of Business/Developer applying for Enterprise Zone Credits:


Granger & Magee PA


Principal Partners:


Mark Granger, CPA 


Mike Magee, CPA


Name of Contact Person:


Mark Granger


Title:


President


Phone Number:


(410) 749-5350


Email Address:


mark@grangercpa.com


Mailing Address


Print   include notes


Enterprise Zone    


SearchWP failed to index 133 posts. View details »


ID: 20


 Edit Edit  Settings Settings  Entries Entries  Preview Preview


Entry  


Move to Trash Edit


Entry Id: 153907 
 
Submitted on: 2022/07/20 at 2:03 pm 
 
User IP: 50.198.144.177 
 
Embed Url: .../enterprise-zone-application 
 


Notifications  


 Admin Notification 
 


 
 


 
 


Resend Notifications


Screen Options
 Dashboard


 Posts


 Staff


Events


 Media


Forms 1


 Pages


Directory


 Comments 5


 Appearance


 Snippets


 Settings


Shortcodes


 Custom Fields


WP Mail SMTP


Yoast SEO 1


Insights 6


 Instant Articles


 WP Accessibility


 Instagram Feed


 Collapse menu


Forms


New Form


Entries


Settings


Import/Export


Add-Ons


System Status


Help


!



http://www.gravityforms.com/pricing/?utm_source=invalid-key&utm_medium=gf-banner

https://smashballoon.com/instagram-feed/?utm_campaign=instagram-free&utm_source=notices&utm_medium=newuser&discount=instagramthankyou

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries&view=entry&id=20&lid=153907&order=ASC&filter&paged=1&pos=0&field_id&operator&sbi_ignore_new_user_sale_notice=always&sbi_nonce=8268077786

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries&view=entry&id=20&lid=153907&order=ASC&filter&paged=1&pos=0&field_id&operator&sbi_ignore_new_user_sale_notice=always&sbi_nonce=8268077786

mailto:mark@grangercpa.com

javascript:;

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/options-general.php?page=searchwp&nonce=1b4a85708b

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries&view=entry&id=20&order=ASC&filter&paged=1&field_id&operator&pos=1

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_edit_forms&id=20

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_edit_forms&view=settings&id=20

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries&id=20

https://salisbury.md/?gf_page=preview&id=20

https://salisbury.md/departments/arts-business-culture/business-development/enterprise-zone-application

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/index.php

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/edit.php

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/edit.php?post_type=staff

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/edit.php?post_type=tribe_events

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/upload.php

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_edit_forms

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/edit.php?post_type=page

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/edit.php?post_type=wpbdp_listing

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/edit-comments.php

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/themes.php

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=snippets

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/options-general.php

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=shortcodes-ultimate

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/edit.php?post_type=acf-field-group

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=wp-mail-smtp

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=wpseo_workouts

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=monsterinsights_reports

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=instant-articles-wizard

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=wp-accessibility

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=sbi-feed-builder

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_edit_forms

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_new_form

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_settings

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_export

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_addons

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_system_status

https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_help





8/2/22, 3:10 PM Entries ‹ City of Salisbury MD — WordPress


https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries&view=entry&id=20&lid=153907&order=ASC&filter&paged=1&pos=0&field_id&operator 2/4


Enterprise Zone : Entry # 153907    show empty fields


101 Williamsport Circle 


Salisbury, MD 21804 


United States 


Map It


Section B - Enterprise Zone Property Information


Address of Property for Which Enterprise Benefits are Sought


145 East Carroll Street, Suite 201 


Salisbury, Maryland 21801 


United States 


Map It


Property Tax # (10 digit - if available)


13-059497


Property Ownership:


Lease


Enterprise Zone Property Improvements Information


Owner of the Real Property


145 East Carroll Street, LLC


Mailing Address of Property Owner


PO Box 3178 


Salisbury, Maryland 21802 


United States 


Map It


Phone


(410) 749-5350


Email


mark@grangermageecpa.com


Project Start Date:


07/19/2022


Anticipated Completion Date:


10/28/2022


Description of Project:


Renovate 3,980 square feet into office space


Type of Construction and Costs - Rehabilitation: $


450000


Type of Construction and Costs - Cost of new machinery & equipment*: $


90000


Applicant Signature


Mark Granger


Date


07/20/2022



https://maps.google.com/maps?q=101+Williamsport+Circle+Salisbury%2C+MD+21804+United+States

https://maps.google.com/maps?q=145+East+Carroll+Street%2C+Suite+201+Salisbury%2C+Maryland+21801+United+States

https://maps.google.com/maps?q=PO+Box+3178+Salisbury%2C+Maryland+21802+United+States

mailto:mark@grangermageecpa.com





8/2/22, 3:10 PM Entries ‹ City of Salisbury MD — WordPress


https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries&view=entry&id=20&lid=153907&order=ASC&filter&paged=1&pos=0&field_id&operator 3/4


Enterprise Zone : Entry # 153907    show empty fields


Property Owner Signature


Mark Granger


Date


07/20/2022


Section D: Enterprise Zone Employment Tax Credit Information


FEIN:


522203069


Unemployment Insurance #:


0070105861


NAICS Code (if available)


541211


Type of Business


Accounting firm


Is business located in Enterprise Zone now


No


If yes, where was the previous location?


101 Williamsport Circle, Salisbury MD 21804


Is Company a new, start up business?


No


Did Enterprise Zone benefits affect your decision to locate at this address?


Yes


If yes, please explain how Enterprise Zone benefits will assist your business


We are expending extensive sums to renovate the building we will relocate to, and the


benefits will help defray significant costs that we are currently not incurring outside of


the enterprise zone such as increased real estate and personal property taxes


Current Number of Full Time Employees in the Zone:


0


Current Number of Part Time Employees in the Zone:


0


If you are new to the Enterprise Zone, please provide the number of employees before
relocating or locating in the Enterprise Zone:


12


New Full Time Jobs to be Created in the Next 12 Months


3


Your Signature


Mark Granger


Your Title:


President







8/2/22, 3:10 PM Entries ‹ City of Salisbury MD — WordPress


https://salisbury.md/wp-admin/admin.php?page=gf_entries&view=entry&id=20&lid=153907&order=ASC&filter&paged=1&pos=0&field_id&operator 4/4


Enterprise Zone : Entry # 153907    show empty fields


How did you hear about this opportunity?


City of Salisbury website


Notes  


Add Note     Also email this note to    







8/2/22, 2:34 PM SDAT: Real Property Data Search<


https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages/viewdetails.aspx?AccountNumber=059497&County=23&District=13&SearchType=ACCT 1/1


Real Property Data Search ( )


Search Result for WICOMICO COUNTY


View Map View GroundRent Redemption View GroundRent Registration


Special Tax Recapture: None


Account Identi�er: District - 13 Account Number - 059497


Owner Information


Owner Name: 145 EAST CARROLL STREET LLC Use: 
Principal Residence:


COMMERCIAL CONDOMINIUM
NO


Mailing Address: 145 E CARROLL ST 
CONDO UNIT 201
SALISBURY MD 21801-


Deed Reference: /05102/ 00017


Location & Structure Information


Premises Address: 145 E CARROLL ST
SALISBURY 21801-0000 
CONDO UNIT: 201


Legal Description: UNIT 201 3,980 SQFT
145 CARROLL ST
H GRAY REEVES PROF CONDO


Map: Grid: Parcel: Neighborhood: Subdivision: Section: Block: Lot: Assessment Year: Plat No:


0111 0006 0004 16001.23 0000 201 2022 Plat Ref:


Town: SALISBURY


Primary Structure Built Above Grade Living Area Finished Basement Area Property Land Area County Use


1986 3,980 SF 3,980 SF


StoriesBasementType ExteriorQualityFull/Half BathGarageLast Notice of Major Improvements


OFFICE CONDOMINIUM/


Value Information


Base Value Value Phase-in Assessments


As of 
01/01/2022


As of 
07/01/2022


As of 
07/01/2023


Land: 114,400 104,400


Improvements 343,300 313,500


Total: 457,700 417,900 417,900 417,900


Preferential Land: 0 0


Transfer Information


Seller: BRENNER CHARLES P TRUSTEE & Date: 05/25/2022 Price: $330,000


Type: ARMS LENGTH IMPROVED Deed1: /05102/ 00017 Deed2: 


Seller: BRENNER, CHARLES P & CHERYL H Date: 09/15/2006 Price: $0


Type: NON-ARMS LENGTH OTHER Deed1: /02667/ 00309 Deed2: 


Seller: TODD, NEVINS W, JR Date: 11/25/1987 Price: $375,000


Type: ARMS LENGTH IMPROVED Deed1: /01126/ 00816 Deed2: 


Exemption Information


Partial Exempt Assessments: Class 07/01/2022 07/01/2023


County: 000 0.00


State: 000 0.00


Municipal: 000 0.00|0.00 0.00|0.00


Special Tax Recapture: None


Homestead Application Information


Homestead Application Status: No Application 


Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Information


Homeowners' Tax Credit Application Status: No Application Date: 



https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/realproperty/maps/showmap.html?countyid=23&accountid=13+059497

javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch_query$ucDetailsSearch_query$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRedemption", "", true, "", "", false, true))

javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$cphMainContentArea$ucSearchType$wzrdRealPropertySearch_query$ucDetailsSearch_query$dlstDetaisSearch$ctl00$lnkGroundRentRegistration", "", true, "", "", false, true))

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Account-Identifier

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Owner-Name

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land-Use

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Principal-Residence

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Mailing-Address

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed-Reference

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Premises-Address

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Legal-Description

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Map-Number

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Grid

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Parcel

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Neighborhood

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Subdivision

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Section

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Block

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Lot

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Assessment-Year

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-No

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Plat-Ref

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Town

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Primary-Structure-Built

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#AGLiving-Area

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FBasement-Area

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Property-Land-Area

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County-Use

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Stories

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Basement

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Exterior

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Quality

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#FHBaths

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Garage

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Renovation

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Base-Value

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Value

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Phase-in-Assessments

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Land

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Improvements

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Total

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Preferential-Land

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Sale-From

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Transfer-Date

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Consideration

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Type

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed1

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Deed2

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Partial-Exempt-Assessments

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#County

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#State-Code

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Municipal

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Special-Tax-Recapture

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homestead-Application-Status

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Status

https://sdat.dat.maryland.gov/RealProperty/Pages_HTML/rp_def.aspx#Homeowners-Tax-Credit-Application-Date













 

 

 

 
Memorandum 
 
To:  Laura Soper, Business Development 
 
Cc:   
 
FROM:  Rick Baldwin, Infrastructure & Development 
 
Date:  August 3, 2022 
 
Subject: Enterprise Zone Qualifications – 145 E. Carroll Ave., Granger & Magee PA 
   
              
 
 
On August 3, 2022 Department of Infrastructure and Development reviewed 145 E. Carroll Avenue, 
Salisbury, MD for Enterprise Zone designation at the request of Granger & Magee, PA.  
 
 

• Granger & Magee, PA located at 145 E. Carroll Avenue is in compliance with the City’s sewer use 
requirements specifically Chapter 13.12 of the City of Salisbury Code of Ordinances. 

 

• Granger & Magee, PA located at 145 E. Carroll Avenue is in compliance with State and local 
storm water management codes and regulations for the date built.  

 



From: Kay Lundy
To: Laura Soper
Subject: RE: Magee PA application.pdf
Date: Wednesday, August 3, 2022 11:10:40 AM

Laura,
 
Yes, they are due, but not delinquent.
 

From: Laura Soper <lsoper@salisbury.md> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 3, 2022 11:07 AM
To: Kay Lundy <klundy@salisbury.md>
Subject: RE: Magee PA application.pdf
 
Hi Kay,
They’re due, but not late, correct?
Thank you
Laura
 

From: Kay Lundy <klundy@salisbury.md> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 3, 2022 9:08 AM
To: Laura Soper <lsoper@salisbury.md>
Subject: RE: Magee PA application.pdf
 
Laura,
 
The 2022-2023 real estate taxes are due.
 
Thanks,
Kay
 
 

From: Laura Soper <lsoper@salisbury.md> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 2, 2022 4:13 PM
To: Kay Lundy <klundy@salisbury.md>; Richard Baldwin <RBaldwin@salisbury.md>; Olga Butar
<obutar@salisbury.md>; Beverly Tull <btull@salisbury.md>
Subject: Magee PA application.pdf
 
Good afternoon,
Attached is an Enterprise Zone application I received from Granger & Magee PA for their location at
145 E Carroll Ave. Please review and let me know if they are in good standing with your department.
Best,
Laura

mailto:klundy@salisbury.md
mailto:lsoper@salisbury.md
mailto:klundy@salisbury.md
mailto:lsoper@salisbury.md
mailto:lsoper@salisbury.md
mailto:klundy@salisbury.md
mailto:RBaldwin@salisbury.md
mailto:obutar@salisbury.md
mailto:btull@salisbury.md






















August 1, 2022 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
1 | P a g e  

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 1 
WORK SESSION  2 
AUGUST 1, 2022 3 

 4 
Public Officials Present 5 

 6 
Council President John “Jack” R. Heath (Zoom) Mayor Jacob R. Day 
Council Vice-President Muir Boda Councilwoman Angela M. Blake 
Councilwoman Michele Gregory  

 7 
Public Officials Absent 8 

 9 
Councilwoman April Jackson 10 

 11 
In Attendance 12 

 13 
City Administrator Julia Glanz, Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Fire Chief John Tull, 14 
Human Resources Director Meg Caton, Business Development Director Laura Soper, Sergeant 15 
Brandon Caton, Assistant City Clerk Julie English, Attorney Ashley Bosche, and members of the 16 
public. 17 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 18 
On August1, 2022 the Salisbury City Council convened a t  4 : 3 0  p . m .  in a hybrid Work 19 
Session in Council Chambers and on Zoom Conferencing Video. 20 
 21 
Ordinance to approve a budget amendment for position authorizations 22 
 23 
Fire Chief John Tull explained the ordinance would approve a FY23 General Fund 24 
budget amendment and authorize the Mayor to amend the Authorized Positions. The 25 
SWIFT Program funding was about to expire, and the budget amendment would make 26 
the program permanent and create the position the person currently assigned to the grant 27 
as full-time and permanent position and support the creation of a Deputy Fire Marshal.  28 
   29 
Ms. Blake asked about the wording in the budget ordinance to ensure the expenses would 30 
be carried forward year after year. Mayor Day assured her that they would be in the 31 
budget moving forward; funds could not be appropriated beyond one fiscal year.  32 
 33 
President Heath asked for the latest SWIFT figures at the next Work Session. 34 
 35 
Mr. Boda asked if the County would be a partner with SWIFT. Chief Tull said they were 36 
working with the Chiefs Association and other departments and almost all departments 37 
had signed the MOU to make SWIFT a county-wide service managed by Salisbury. 38 
TidalHealth and the Fire Department were pursuing grants to enable them to go out into 39 
the County more. Mr. Boda asked if the additional fire departments were willing to 40 
financially assist and Chief Tull said they had not gotten to that point. The MOUs were 41 
the first big hurdle. Mr. Boda added that if the benefits were shared with the County the 42 
burden should not be on the backs of the Salisbury tax payers.  43 



August 1, 2022 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
2 | P a g e  

 
 

 44 
Ms. Blake asked for the average cost of a SWIFT call and Chief Tull said that a non-45 
emergent EMS transport was about $700. Most of the expenses could not be recouped 46 
because they did not have insurance and Medicare only paid a small portion.  47 
 48 
Council reached unanimous consensus to advance the legislation to legislative agenda. 49 
 50 
Resolution to re-designate the Salisbury-Wicomico Enterprise Zone   51 
 52 
Business Development Director Laura Soper said the Enterprise Zone was re-designated 53 
every 10 years to stay competitive with other counties. She had discussed the expansion 54 
and re-designation with City and County officials, and several additions were included in 55 
the re-designation including The Center At Salisbury, an area near Milford Street, and an 56 
area in Westwood Commerce Park which was cleaned up. 57 
 58 
Council reached unanimous consensus to advance the legislation to legislative agenda. 59 
 60 
Resolution to wind down LOSAP for volunteer members of the Salisbury Fire 61 
Department and adopt a Volunteer Member Incentive Policy 62 
 63 
Chief Tull and Deputy Chief Lee Smith joined Council and explained the resolution 64 
would freeze the current LOSAP Program with no new members allowed to join. All new 65 
members would transition to a volunteer incentive program paid out in five-year 66 
increments. When a member reached the five-year mark they would get a financial 67 
incentive, which would continue for each five-year milestone they reached.  68 
 69 
Ms. Blake asked what was driving the change from the retirement to a 5-year stipend. 70 
Chief Tull said it was not for financial reasons but was for volunteerism. They were not 71 
seeing people stay as volunteers for 20-25 years and this would incentivize volunteerism. 72 
 73 
Mr. Heath asked if there were adjustments in the number of hours required, and Deputy 74 
Chief Smith answered the requirement was still 36 hours /month and 180 hours/quarter. . 75 
 76 
Mr. Boda asked if the five-year stipends were legal within State law requirements and 77 
City Attorney Ashley Bosche said she had worked closely with Chief Tull to classify 78 
them as stipends as to not be confused as wages. The stipends had a limit of 25 years. 79 
 80 
Council reached unanimous consensus to advance the legislation to legislative agenda. 81 
 82 
Administration and Council Comments 83 
 84 
Ms. Glanz thanked everyone for coming out to the River Fest and ribbon cutting for the 85 
Riverwalk Park. Tomorrow was National Night Out at the City Park from 5 pm to 8 pm. 86 
 87 
Ms. Gregory encouraged everyone to visit the park and to sign up for the Folk Festival. 88 
 89 



August 1, 2022 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
3 | P a g e  

 
 

Ms. Blake requested follow up on requests she had from July 11, 2022 (Dirt Bike 90 
Ordinance, Mobile Crisis report, Information on the Fire Department’s Personnel Board, 91 
and monthly billings for utility bills). Mayor Day said the billings were placed in the bid 92 
documents four years ago when the City bid out their new Finance system. The vendor 93 
could not deliver, but it remained a focus and priority. 94 
 95 
Mr. Heath said he was looking forward to volunteering for the National Folk Festival.  96 
 97 
Discussion with Leadership of the Volunteer Fire Personnel Board 98 
 99 
The following leadership of the Volunteer Fire Personnel Board came forward to answer 100 
Ms. Blake’s questions as they were in the audience: Fire Chief Tull, Captain Danny 101 
Long, President Todd Dudek, and Personnel Board Chairperson Matt Rajala.  102 
 103 
Mr. Rajala said all members were held to the same requirements. They had to maintain 104 
36 hours per month with only 18 hours staffed in a Capital Fire piece such as an engine, 105 
ambulance or truck. Every member on probation or dismissed received the same letter. If 106 
a quarter was missed, the volunteer entered into a probationary period whereby they still 107 
had to fulfill the 108 hours, but could not vote on corporate matters. According to the 108 
by-laws if the 36 hours per month was not met in two quarters, dismissal of the volunteer 109 
would occur. He read the probationary letter and the dismissal letter. The letter was not 110 
signed because it was from a group elected by their peers. Everyone was held to the 111 
same standards, received the same assessment, letters, and in the same progressive order.  112 
 113 
Mr.Boda asked how many volunteers were dismissed this year, and Mr. Rajala said there 114 
were 12 dismissed, and 19 probationary letters were sent in addition to the 115 
dismissals.Captain Danny Long said they took this matter very serious. They abide by 116 
the EOC and were concerned that the City taxpayers were funding their insurance, gear, 117 
and training. Their fear was that if they allowed someone to not make their percentage, it 118 
de-incentivized everyone else. Mr.Boda was grateful they had the opportunity to join 119 
Council and be heard. He thanked them for their service. 120 
 121 
Mr. Rajala passed out the attached information which is included as part of the minutes. 122 
 123 
Mr. Boda said everyone had a great time at River Fest. He was grateful seeing the Fire 124 
Department on the river protecting people. The Park and Garden Bar were in nice areas.  125 
 126 
Adjournment of Work Session / Convene in Special Meeting 127 
 128 
With no further business to discuss, Vice President Boda adjourned the Work Session at          129 
5:02 p.m. and Council immediately convened in the Special Meeting. 130 
 131 
____________________________________ 132 
City Clerk 133 
 134 
____________________________________ 135 
Council President 136 



August 1, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes 
Approved: 

 1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 
 
SPECIAL MEETING AUGUST 1, 2022 

 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS PRESENT 

 
Council President John “Jack” R. Heath (Zoom)  Mayor Jacob R. Day 
Council Vice President Muir Boda   Councilwoman Angela M. Blake 
Councilwoman Michele Gregory   

 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS ABSENT 

 
Councilwoman April Jackson 

  
IN ATTENDANCE 

 
City Administrator Julia Glanz, Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Human Resources 
Director Meg Caton, City Attorney Ashley Bosche, City Clerk Kimberly Nichols  
****************************************************************************** 
The City Council convened in a Work Session at 4:30 p.m. At 5:02 p.m. the Work Session 
adjourned and Council immediately convened in the Special Meeting.  
 
ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
 
Ms. Blake moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous (4-0 vote) to approve the 
Special Meeting agenda as presented.  
 
ORDINANCE- presented by City Attorney Ashley Bosche 
 

• Ordinance No. 2733- 1st reading- approving a budget amendment of the FY2023 General 
Fund Budget and authorizing the Mayor to amend the authorized positions included in the 
FY23 General Fund Budget 

 
Mr. Heath moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous (4-0 vote) to approve 
Ordinance No. 2733 for first reading. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business to discuss, the Special Meeting adjourned at 5:07 p.m. Council then 
convened in Closed Session. 
 
________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Council President 



MEMORANDUM

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

From: John W. Tull, Fire Chief 

Subject: LOSAP Resolution and Proposed Changes 

Date: July 28, 2022 

In 1991, the City established a Length of Service Awards Program (LOSAP), which is governed by the 

1991 Master Plan (“LOSAP Master Plan”) and effectuated through an Adoption Agreement, to provide a 

benefit to the retired volunteer members of the Fire Department in recognition to their service to the City. 

This agreement has been amended several times over the years and the volunteer members of the Fire 

Department have recommended the winding down of LOSAP and the adoption of a Volunteer Member 

Incentive Policy.   

Attached you will find a Resolution, an amended Adoption Agreement and a Volunteer Member 

Incentive Policy.  Thank you in advance for your time and consideration on this request.  Unless 

you or the Mayor have further questions, please forward a copy of this memo and ordinance to the 

City Council for their consideration. 



RESOLUTION NO. 3183 1 
 2 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WINDING DOWN OF THE LENGTH 3 
OF SERVICE AWARDS PROGRAM (LOSAP) FOR VOLUNTEER MEMBERS 4 
OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY FIRE DEPARTMENT AND THE ADOPTION 5 
OF A VOLUNTEER MEMBER INCENTIVE POLICY.  6 

 7 
RECITALS 8 

 WHEREAS, the volunteer members of the City of Salisbury Fire Department provide many hours of 9 
public safety services at great personal risk and for no financial remuneration; and  10 

 11 
 WHEREAS, in 1991, the City established a Length of Service Awards Program (LOSAP), which is 12 
governed by the 1991 Master Plan (“LOSAP Master Plan”) and effectuated through an Adoption Agreement, to 13 
provide a benefit to the retired volunteer members of the Fire Department in recognition to their service to the 14 
City; and 15 
 16 
 WHEREAS, the City reserved the right to make amendments to the LOSAP Master Plan and the 17 
Adoption Agreement and to terminate LOSAP at any time in whole or in part; and 18 
 19 
 WHEREAS, there have been two amendments to the initial Adoption Agreement, one in 2007 (“First 20 
Amended Adoption Agreement”) and second in 2018 (“Second Amended Adoption Agreement”); and 21 
 22 

WHEREAS, the volunteer members of the Fire Department have recommended the winding down of 23 
LOSAP and the adoption of a Volunteer Member Incentive Policy, which shall eventually replace the LOSAP 24 
Master Plan and eliminate LOSAP; and 25 
 26 

WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury has determined that it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City 27 
and the volunteer members of the Fire Department to adopt the volunteer members’ recommendation and to 28 
approve a Third Amended Adoption Agreement, which is attached as Exhibit 1, to effectuate the winding down 29 
of LOSAP; and 30 

 31 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 32 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND AS FOLLOWS: 33 
 34 

Section 1. The City approves the Third Amended Adoption Agreement attached as Exhibit 1.  35 
 36 
Section 2.  The City approves the Third Amended Adoption Agreement for the purpose of winding 37 

down LOSAP and eventually replacing the LOSAP Master Plan with a Volunteer Member Incentive Policy to be 38 
adopted and administered by the City’s Fire Department. 39 

 40 
Section 3.  As of August 8, 2022, all Volunteer Members of the City’s Fire Department who are 100% 41 

vested in accordance with the Third Amended Adoption Agreement and who are collecting a monthly benefit 42 
payment shall continue to collect a monthly benefit payment, as set forth by the Third Amended Adoption 43 
Agreement. 44 

 45 
Section 4.   As of August 8, 2022, all Volunteer Members of the City’s Fire Department who are 100% 46 

vested in accordance with the Third Amended Adoption Agreement, but who are not collecting a monthly benefit 47 
payment shall remain in LOSAP and shall collect benefits, once eligible, as set forth by the Third Amended 48 
Adoption Agreement.  49 

 50 
Section 5.  As of August 8, 2022, any Volunteer Member of the City’s Fire Department who is not 51 

100% vested in accordance with the LOSAP Master Plan and Third Amended Adoption Agreement shall not be 52 
eligible for the benefits set forth in the LOSAP Master Plan and Third Amended Adoption Agreement, but shall 53 



be eligible for the benefits set forth in the Volunteer Member Incentive Policy, provided he/she is eligible for 54 
such benefits under the terms of the Policy. 55 
 56 

Section 6. Under the City’s Volunteer Member Incentive Policy, the City shall pay a stipend to active 57 
Volunteer Members in accordance with a stipend schedule as determined by the City and provided the Volunteer 58 
Members meet the eligibility requirements set forth in the Policy.  The City’s obligation to pay the stipend shall 59 
be unfunded and unsecured and shall at all times be subject to change. 60 

 61 
Section 7.  Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to sign any documents necessary to effectuate the 62 

changes set forth herein.  63 
 64 
AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AS 65 

FOLLOWS: 66 
 67 
Section 8.  It is the intention of the Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of this 68 

Resolution shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 69 
 70 
Section 9.  It is further the intention of the Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 71 

paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or 72 
otherwise unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the 73 
section, paragraph, subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Resolution shall 74 
remain and shall be deemed valid and enforceable. 75 

 76 
Section 10. The Recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of this Resolution as if 77 

such recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 10. 78 
 79 
Section 11.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after its final passage.  80 
 81 

            THIS RESOLUTION was introduced, read and passed at the regular meeting of the Council of the City 82 
of Salisbury held on August 22, 2022. 83 
 84 
 85 
 86 
___________________________________  _____________________________________ 87 
Kimberly R. Nichols,                                 John R. Heath, 88 
City Clerk                                                    Council President 89 
 90 
APPROVED BY ME this _____ day of__________________, 2022. 91 
  92 
 93 
____________________________ 94 
Jacob R. Day, 95 
Mayor  96 
 97 



































 

City of Salisbury Fire Department 
Policies and Procedures Manual 
Standard Operating Guidelines 

 

SOP:   Effective August 8, 2022 

Subject: Volunteer Member Incentive Program Revised:  

Section: Personnel Category: Volunteers 

Issued by:    John W. Tull, Chief of the Department 
 

1 
 

Purpose:  To provide active Volunteer Members of the City of Salisbury Fire Department 
with a benefit incentive, provided certain requirements are met.  

 
Policy: 

I. An Administrative Board shall be established to oversee this Policy and 

shall consist of five (5) members to include the: 

A. Deputy Volunteer Fire Chief; and 

B. Two (2) Volunteer Members of The Salisbury Fire Department, 

Incorporated; and 

C. Two (2) Volunteer Members of Salisbury Fire Company, No. 2, 

Inc.  

II. The Policy Year shall be the 12-month period beginning on July 1 and 

ending on June 30 each year. 

III. The Calendar Year shall be the 12-month period beginning on January 1 

and ending on December 31 each year.  

IV. To be eligible for Membership benefits under this Policy, a Member must: 

A. Be an active Volunteer Member of either the Salisbury Fire 

Department, Incorporated or the Salisbury Fire Company, No. 2, 

Inc.; and 

B. Be at least 18 years of age; and 



Subject: Live-Ins  Page 2 of 5 
SOP: 260-03 

C. Complete a “Year of Benefit Service.”  A Member completes a Year 

of Benefit Service, if he or she completes the following 

requirements within one (1) Calendar Year: 

i. Is operationally cleared for service and off of 

probation; and  

ii. Participates in twenty-four (24) hours of 

verifiable, hands-on company drills/training; and  

iii. Provides a minimum of thirty-six (36) hours of 

staff time per month: 

1. Totaling a minimum of 108 hours per 

quarter; and 

2. Totaling a minimum of 432 hours 

annually; and 

3. Not miss more than one meeting per 

quarter.  

iv. Members who are injured while in the 

performance of their duties shall be covered 

under the Workers Compensation Policy and 

maintain their eligible service requirements.  

v. Members injured/sick for all other reasons shall 

maintain eligible service if, and only if, they have 

met all of the requirements outlined in this 

Section.   



Subject: Live-Ins  Page 3 of 5 
SOP: 260-03 

vi. Members voluntarily requesting a personal leave 

of absence shall maintain eligible service if, and 

only if, they have met all of the requirements 

outlined in this Section.  

V. Each Year of Benefit Service shall be calculated utilizing the Fire 

Department’s computer systems:  

1) Chief Backstage for staff time; and  

2) Fire House software for training. 

VI. Stipend Schedule 

A. Volunteer Members who have met the eligibility requirements set 

forth above and are in good standing according to the City’s Master 

Roster on June 30th of each year may receive stipends from the City 

as a Membership benefit.  Stipends shall be calculated based upon 

“Years of Benefit Service” and distributed upon each 5-year 

anniversary.  

1) After 5 Years of Benefit Service, a Member may receive a 

one-time stipend of up to $2,500. 

2) After 10 Years of Benefit Service, a Member may receive a 

one-time stipend of up to $3,000. 

3) After 15 Years of Benefit Service, a Member may receive a 

one-time stipend of up to $3,500. 

4) After 20 Years of Benefit Service, a Member may receive a 

one-time stipend of up to $4,000. 



Subject: Live-Ins  Page 4 of 5 
SOP: 260-03 

5) After 25 years of Benefit Service, a Member may receive a 

one-time stipend of up to $4,500. 

6) After 30 years of Benefit Service, a Member may receive a 

one-time stipend of up to $5,000. 

B. A Volunteer Member whose service is interrupted by resignation or 

involuntary termination shall be deemed to have suffered a Break in 

Service.   

C. If a Volunteer Member suffers a Break in Service before reaching 

the aforementioned milestones, and subsequently resumes 

participation, all previous creditable time shall be disregarded in 

calculating Years of Benefit Service. 

D. For purposes of this Policy, approved leave, such as medical leave, 

will not be deemed a Break in Service.  

VII. Amendments, Termination, and Other Rights 

A. Amendments. The City of Salisbury reserves the right to make any 

amendment or amendments to this Policy at any time. 

B. Right to Terminate. The City may terminate this Policy at any time 

in whole or in part. 

C. No Funding Obligation. The obligation of the City to pay any 

stipends under this Policy shall be unfunded and unsecured and shall 

be at all times subject to the City’s budgetary rules, restrictions, and 

applicable ordinances. Any stipends paid under this Policy shall be 



Subject: Live-Ins  Page 5 of 5 
SOP: 260-03 

made from the general assets of the City, which general assets are 

subject to the claims of creditors of the City.  

D. Disclaimer. Nothing in this Policy constitutes an express or implied 

contract or warranty of any benefits between the City and any 

Volunteer Member.  

E. Applicable Law. This Program shall be construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of Maryland.   



To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 
From: Richard D. Baldwin, Director of Infrastructure and Development 
Date: 
Re: 

August 2, 2022 
Zoning Code Text Amendment Amending Section 17.36.020 and Adding Section 
17.224.040 

The text amendment to section 17.36.020 and chapter 17.224 was prepared by the City 
Attorney and following a public hearing Planning Commission received favorable 
recommendation on May 19, 2022.   

1. Ordinance for a text amendment to Zoning Code in Title 17 Zoning.
a. Amending Section 17.36.020 of the Salisbury City Code, entitled “Permitted

uses,” to add Townhouse development as a permitted use.
b. Amending Chapter 17.224 of the Salisbury City Code, entitled “Townhouse

Development,” to include section 17.224.040 entitled “Requirements in
General Commercial District.

c. This text amendment will allow for additional housing development options
in the General Commercial zoning district adjacent to Residential districts
providing a transitional pattern of development.

Unless you or the Mayor has further questions, please forward a copy of this memo and the 
ordinance to the City Council. 



1 

1 
2 
3 
4 

ORDINANCE NO. 2734 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AMENDING SECTIONS 17.36.020 AND 
17.224.040 OF THE SALISBURY CITY CODE TO PERMIT TOWNHOUSE 
DEVELOPMENTS IN GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS  5 
WHEREAS, the ongoing application, administration and enforcement of Title 17 (Zoning) of the City Code 6 

of the City of Salisbury (the “Salisbury City Code”) demonstrates a need for its periodic review, evaluation and 7 
amendment, in order to keep the provisions of Title 17 current, comply with present community standards and values, 8 
and promote the public safety, health and welfare of the citizens of the City of Salisbury (the “City”); 9 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury (the “Mayor and Council”) are authorized by 10 
MD Code, Local Government, § 5-202 to adopt such ordinances, not contrary to the Constitution of Maryland, public 11 
general law or public local law, as the Mayor and Council deem necessary to assure the good government of the 12 
municipality, to preserve peace and order, to secure persons and property from damage and destruction, and to protect 13 
the health, comfort and convenience of the citizens of the City; 14 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council may amend Title 17 (Zoning) of the Salisbury City Code pursuant to 15 
the authority granted by MD Code, Land Use, § 4-102, subject to the provisions set forth in § 17.228.020 of the 16 
Salisbury City Code; 17 

WHEREAS, the General Commercial district currently permits apartments to provide housing options close 18 
to employment, retail, and service centers. The inclusion of townhouse developments would provide an additional 19 
housing option near these centers. Townhouse developments with higher density would serve as a transitional land 20 
use adjacent to residential districts; 21 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council find that the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of the 22 
City will be furthered by amending sections 17.36.020 and 17.224.040 of the Salisbury City Code to permit 23 
townhouse developments in General Commercial districts; 24 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 17.228.020 of the Salisbury City Code, any amendment to the Salisbury Zoning 25 
Code requires the recommendation of the Salisbury Planning and Zoning Commission (the “Planning Commission”) 26 
prior to the passage of an ordinance amending Chapter 17.04; 27 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed amendment was held by the Planning Commission in 28 
accordance with the provisions of § 17.228.020 of the Salisbury City Code on May 19, 2022; 29 

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of its May 19, 2022 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended, by a 30 
vote of 6-0, that the amendments to Section 17.36.020 and 17.224.040 of the Salisbury City Code set forth herein be 31 
approved by the Mayor and Council; and 32 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined that the amendments to Section 17.36.020 and 33 
17.224.040 of the Salisbury City Code set forth shall be adopted as set forth herein. 34 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 35 
SALISBURY, MARYLAND, that Title 17 of the Salisbury City Code is hereby amended by adding the bolded and 36 
underlined language as follows: 37 

Section 1.  By amending Section 17.36.020 of the Salisbury City Code, entitled “Method of Regulation” as 38 
follows: 39 
17.36.020 Permitted uses. 40 

A. Permitted uses shall be as follows:41 
1. Apartment units, in accordance with chapter 17.168;42 
2. Bank;43 
3. Bakery;44 
4. Boardinghouse/rooming house;45 



2 

5. Business center in accordance with the requirements of chapter 17.172, provided that each 46 
individual lot shall have a minimum of six thousand (6,000) square feet of land area; 47 

6. Carpenter, sheet metal, sign, blacksmith and welding shop, provided that all activities are48 
confined within a building;49 

7. Church and other place of worship;50 
8. Club, lodge and fraternal organization;51 
9. Cultivation of land;52 
10. Cultural uses, such as museum, library or art gallery;53 
11. Dry-cleaning plant;54 
12. Eating and drinking establishments, including tavern, dance hall, nightclub and restaurants, all55 

types;56 
13. Firehouse;57 
14. Equipment sales, rental, service, repair or maintenance facility for industrial, automotive,58 

marine, office, construction, household, business or farm equipment;59 
15. Greenhouse, florist and nursery;60 
16. Hotel, motel or motor hotel;61 
17. Laboratory and establishment for production, sale, fitting or repair of eyeglasses, hearing aids62 

and prosthetic appliances;63 
18. Light industrial uses, as listed in the light industrial district, completely confined within a64 

building with no outside storage of raw materials or finished products;65 
19. Lumber and building supplies;66 
20. Marina;67 
21. Medical-care facility;68 
22. Medical and dental office and clinic;69 
23. Police station or substation;70 
24. Parking garage, public or private;71 
25. Mixed use building as defined in section 17.04.120 in this chapter in accordance with a72 

comprehensive site plan, as approved by the planning commission, with a mandatory five-foot-73 
wide landscaping area abutting all property lines and parking lots. Signage shall be the same as74 
required for a shopping center;75 

26. Neighborhood shopping center not exceeding thirty thousand (30,000) gross square feet of76 
building area in accordance with the requirements of chapter 17.212;77 

27. Office or office building for more than one office;78 
28. Radio or television broadcasting station or studio;79 
29. Retail sales;80 
30. School of special instruction;81 
31. Service, rental or repair establishment, such as laundry or laundromat, automobile rental,82 

gasoline and service station, car wash, appliance repair, equipment or instrument repair or83 
rental, dry-cleaning pickup station, hairdresser shop, pet-grooming shop, excluding outdoor84 
runs, upholstery shop, funeral home, tailor and other uses of similar nature;85 



3 

32. Taxi and limousine service; 86 
33. Theater, excluding drive-in theater;87 
34. Wholesale business, warehouse, moving, storage and distribution establishment, including88 

wholesale sales;89 
35. Group domiciliary care facility;90 
36. Townhouse development, in accordance with chapter 17.224.91 

Section 2.  By adding Section 17.224.040 of the Salisbury City Code, entitled “Requirements in General 92 
Commercial Districts” as follows: 93 

17.224.040 Requirements in General Commercial District. 94 
Townhouse developments in the General Commercial District shall comply with all the 95 
requirements of this chapter and the following; 96 

A. Contiguity.97 
1. The parcel on which townhouses are to be built shall have a continuous boundary line98 

in common, of at least 200’, with a parcel(s) in the R-8A or R-10A zoning districts;99 
2. A road dividing zoning districts cannot be used to establish contiguity.100 

B. Density.101 
1. Townhouse developments shall be at the density requirements for R-5A of this102 

chapter. 103 
BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 104 

SALISBURY, MARYLAND, as follows: 105 
Section 3.  It is the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that each provision of this 106 

Ordinance shall be deemed independent of all other provisions herein. 107 
Section 4.  It is further the intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury that if any section, 108 

paragraph, subsection, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be adjudged invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 109 
unenforceable under applicable Maryland or federal law, such adjudication shall apply only to the section, paragraph, 110 
subsection, clause or provision so adjudged and all other provisions of this Ordinance shall remain and shall be 111 
deemed valid and enforceable. 112 

Section 5.  The recitals set forth hereinabove are incorporated into this section of the Ordinance as if such 113 
recitals were specifically set forth at length in this Section 5. 114 

Section 6.   This Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 115 
116 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury 117 
held on the 22 day of August, 2022 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance having 118 
been published as required by law, in the meantime, was finally passed by the Council of the City of Salisbury on the 119 
12 day of September, 2022. 120 
ATTEST: 121 

122 
123 

_____________________________ __________________________________ 124 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk John R. Heath, City Council President 125 

126 
Approved by me, this ________day of ______________, 2022. 127 

128 
_____________________________ 129 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 130 


	Agenda
	Res 3181
	Res 3182
	Manufacturing Exemptions
	08-01-2022 WS min
	08-01-22 SM min
	Res 3183
	Ord 2734



